
United Nations 

GENERAL 
ASSEMBLY 
FIFTH SESSION 

Official Records 

SECOND COMMITTEE 123rd 
MEETINC 

Saturday, 14 October 1950, at 10.45 a.m. 

Lake Success, New York 

CONTENTS 
Page 

Economic development of under-developed countries: report of the Economic 
and Social Council ( A/1345 and A/1359) (continued) . . . . . . . . . . . . . 39 

Chairman: Mr. V. V. SKOROBOGATY (Byelorussian Soviet Socialist Republic) 
(Vice-Chairman). 

Economic development of under-developed coun­
tries: report of the Economic and Social 
Council (A/1345 and A/1359) (continued) 

[Item 28]* 

1. Mr. DAVIN (New Zealand) said that his delega­
tion had studied with considerable interest chapter II 
of the report of the Economic and Social Council1 on 
the economic development of under-developed countries. 
That report was a most useful document for countries 
which were not represented on the Council. 

2. He believed that while the progressive achievement 
of economic development in under-developed countries 
was of crucial importance for the well-being of millions 
of people, the possibilities for immediate practical action 
by the United Nations in that field should not be over­
estimated. Although the United Nations and the spe­
cialized agencies could give valuable information and 
advice on various economic and social problems, it was 
for the national governments themselves to exercise 
the energy, determination and persistence necessary to 
apply that advice. By granting fellowships and scholar­
ships, the United Nations was helping governments to 
secure the necessary trained personnel to carry out their 
plans. 

3. Given sound technical plans and a competent per­
sonnel to carry them out, under-developed countries 
would need much capital, particularly foreign capital, 
to finance projects for economic development. The needs 
of under-developed countries for capital were so vast 
and the prospect of return so remote and difficult to 
estimate in terms of money that it would be difficult 
for the International Bank for Reconstruction and 
Development to provide the necessary capital while at 

* Indicates the item number on the General Assembly agenda. 
1 See Official Records of the General Assembly, Fifth Session, 

Supplement No. 3. 

39 

the same time adhering to the normal banking prin­
ciples laid down in its Articles of Agreement. Although 
there had been striking examples of grants of capital 
by individual countries such as the United States and 
the United Kingdom, there was little evidence that, 
apart from the machinery of the Bank, action through 
the United Nations by way of the direct grant of cap­
ital to under-developed countries was as yet a practical 
possibility. 

4. Referring to the statement made by the United 
Kingdom representative (119th meeting) on what the 
United Kingdom had done by way of assistance for 
colonial development and in supplying investment cap­
ital to the sterling area, he said that the New Zealand 
Government had recently been represented at the Lon­
don meeting of the Commonwealth Consultative Com­
mittee on South and South-east Asia. His delegation 
had been most favourably impressed by the economic 
development programmes of the under-developed coun­
tries in that area. The meeting had not confined its 
attention to the countries of the British Commonwealth, 
but had also endeavoured to study the problems of 
other countries in the area, because it realized that 
poverty, like peace, was indivisible and that there was 
no point in trying to raise living standards in common­
wealth countries if poverty was left unresolved in 
neighbouring non-Commonwealth countries. 

5. The problems facing South and South-east Asia 
were typical of the problems of all under-developed 
countries. The area in question was rich in natural 
resources but most of its people lived in great poverty. 
The situation had become worse because the flow of 
capital from Europe had now dwindled almost to 
nothing. Furthermore, the dislocation and actual devas­
tation resulting from the war and the political dis­
turbances of the post-war period had increased the 
disorganization of production and transport of food-

A/C.2/SR.123 



General Assembly-Fifth Session-Second Committee 
---------------------------
stuffs and raw materials. Because of that disorganiza­
tion and of the steady increase of the population, the 
main problem was still the supply of food. Throughout 
the area poverty, undernourishment, i!literacy and a 
high mortality rate were still the rule rather than the 
exception. 

6. The a im of the six-year plans ex:~.mined by the 
Commonwealth Consultative Committee was to achieve 
the minimum essential development which would give 
the initial impetus to enable the countr.ies to carry on 
the work of economic development large'iy by their own 
efforts; the most difficult task for an under-developed 
country was to carry through the early stages of devel­
opment; once the process was under way it became 
cumulative. Much work had already been done in the 
countries concerned, and in framing the:i r programmes 
they had been guided by past experience, including only 
those projects which they could complete within the six 
years, if given an adequate supply of capital and trained 
personnel from overseas. All those programmes, with 
one exception, concentrated on the exp:!.nsion of agri­
cultural production, the development of transport and 
communications and the provision of electric power. 
That accounted for 70 per cent of the e2:penditure pro­
posed. Only about 10 per cent had be-!n allocated to 
industry, and 18 per cent for the building of schools, 
hospitals and houses. T he need fo r housing, health and 
education facilities was everywhere urgent, but govern­
ments had had to weigh the advantages of the develop­
ment of production on the one hand and the extension 
of social services on the other. It was c•bvious that an 
expansion of productive capacity would directly in­
crease the national income, whereas the extension of 
social services would place increased burdens upon 
revenue. 

7. It seemed, for the time being at least, that schemes 
of that kind should be left to the inidat ive of indi­
vidual countries or groups of countries and that United 
Nations action in regard to the supply of capital would 
be best directed to giving under-developed countries 
full infonnation and advice on the mean~ of securing or 
a ttracting fo reign capital from likely sources. 

8. The New Zealand delegation wisheC: to express its 
support for the action taken dur ing the past year in 
that field by the Economic and Social Council and for 
the resolutions which the Council had <.dopted. 

9. \Vith regard to the financing of economic develop­
ment, his delegation was in agreement with the conclu­
sions of the Council as expressed in resolution 294 
(IX), particularly the conclusion that, in addition to 
domestic savings, there was need for an expanded and 
more stable flow of foreign investments. It also en­
dorsed the recommendations that governments should 
establish conditions likely to encourage par ticipation of 
foreign private capital, that private lending from the 
more developed countries :;hould be encouraged by their 
governments, and that the principle of untied lending 
should be increasingly observed in all government­
controlled or supported foreign lending. His delegation 
had also noted the assurance given by the International 
Bank for Reconstruction and Development that it would 
"examine the size, composition and financial implica­
tions of a borrowing country's investment programme 
as a whole. as well as the details of selected projects". 

10. His country could give valuable help in the field 
of technical assistance. In that connexion, he was glad 
to note the work done in providing technical experts to 
var ious countries and granting fellowships. New Zea­
land was one of the host countries which made facilities 
available to fellowship holders. 

11. His delegat ion agreed with the draft resolution 
proposed by the Council to the General Assembly ( reso­
lution 291 A (XI)) that requests for technical assist­
ance which could not be financed with funds provided 
under the regular budget of the U nited Nations for 
1951 should be eligible for financing from the special 
account for technical assistance for economic develop­
ment. H is country had been able to offer a contribution 
of $126,000 for that programme. T he total sum avail­
able, namely about $20 million, would represent a sub­
stantial contribution to the training of skilled personnel 
and the provision of expert assistance for economic de­
velopment. Special praise was due to the U nited States 
for its generosity in that field. 

12. The machinery for the administration of the pro­
gramme appeared to be working satisfactorily. He 
agreed with the view generally recognized by the Coun­
cil that the expanded programme of technical assistance 
should be centrally administered to ensure the proper 
co-ordination of requests for assistance and the best use 
of the knowledge and experience available throughout 
the world. 

13. The existence of bilateral or regional programmes 
of technical assistance should not affect the eligibility 
of recipient countries to receive technical assistance re­
quested from the United Nations and the specialized 
agencies ; the assistance provided through such bilateral 
and regional programmes would be complementa ry to 
and not a substitute for the assistance provided through 
the United Nations and the specialized agencies. 

14. l'vl r. KHOSROVANI (Iran) said that, in addi­
tion to the pledges embodied in the Charter, two other 
considerations compelled Member States to promote the 
development of under-developed countries: first, the 
universal desire to eliminate the basic causes of war 
and, second, the general recognition of the fact that 
economic stability and full employment could be 
achieved and maintained only in an expanding world 
economy. It was imperative to bridge the gap between 
the standards of living in the developed and under­
developed countries not only because of the frustration 
felt by the peoples of the backward countries, but also 
because economic weakness and low standards of living 
were a potential cause of unrest and wars. 

15. H ear tening though it was to see the attention of the 
world focused on that problem, it was essential to 
guard against too much verbal enthusiasm without pos­
itive action, so as not to O\'er -estimate what had been 
done or what could rea:;onably be expected from the 
existing programmes of assistance for under-developed 
countries. Indeed very li tt le had been done for the 
fi nancing of economic development. Resolution 294 
(XI) of the Economic and Social Council represented 
a very important step forward, but there was still a 
long way to go. The Council itself had recommended 
that the problems involved should be kept under con­
stant study and review. 



123rd Meeting-14 October 1950 41 

16. The Council had emphasized the importance of 
domestic savings; it should be realized, however, that 
the national per capita income in under-developed coun­
tries was so low that even if the most effective methods 
of saving were adopted, the domestic capital thus avail­
able would still fall far below the requirements of eco­
nomic development. It was nearly always essential that 
foreign financing should supplement whatever resources 
could be made available by domestic effort. That was 
the reason for the Council's recommendation that gov­
ernments should take all the necessary steps to encour­
age the participation of foreign private capital in their 
economic development schemes. 

17. It should be emphasized that the decrease in the 
flow of private foreign capital in recent decades had not 
been due merely to want of reasonable guarantees for 
the safeguard of that capital. The main reason was that 
in most under-developed countries the cream of the 
projects had, so to speak, already been skimmed. Dur­
ing the past century, foreign investors had sought and 
e~ploited various projects in non-European countries 
with hardly any regard for the welfare of the in­
habitants. Vestiges of that type of investment could 
still be seen here and there, but conditions had changed. 
Non-intervention in domestic affairs and the strict ob­
servance of the social rights of the inhabitants had 
beco.me ~ssential prere9.~isites to the acceptance of 
~oreign aid. Those condi~IOns, as well as the low-yield­
mg character of the proJects and the fact that foreign 
exchange could not be provided for quick repayment 
~nd regular payments of interest, explained the decline 
m the flow of private foreign investment. 

18. Any. e~onomic developmen.t aimed at raising stand­
ard~ of ~Ivmg had to start with, or at least include, 
pr~Jects m such. fields ~s transport, public health, edu­
cation an? housmg, which were seldom self-liquidating 
and certamly did not attract private capital from abroad. 
If undertaken by domestic financing alone, they could 
lead to acute inflation. Consequently it was the duty of 
the .more developed countries to assist under-developed 
regwns ~hose natural resources had in the past played 
such an Important part in the industrialization of the 
former. Such assistance should not be granted as mere 
gratitude but because it represented a sound economic 
policy and because it was essential to the securing of 
world prosperity and peace. 

19. Although it might be possible to increase some­
what the flow of private capital, the early stages of eco­
nomic development would have to be financed from 
other sources of capital, namely, governmental loans 
and loans from . intert;tational institutions. Partially­
dev~loped countnes might be able to attract foreign 
capital and to meet the exacting conditions of some of 
th.e international institutions. Under-developed coun­
!nes, h<;>~ever, had been experiencing great difficulties 
111 obtammg loans for financing basic projects which 
w~re so ~ssential for creating conditions likely to attract 
pnvate mvestment. There was thus a vicious circle 
which could only be broken by a substantial liberaliza­
tion in the terms and conditions which must be met to 
secure loans from existing international sources or by 
the creation of some new sources in that field. 

20. It was difficult to foresee how far the International 
Bank would be permitted to go by its Board of Direc-

tors in adopting a more liberal policy. The French rep­
resentative had said that the Bank had shown greater 
boldness in financing the reconstruction programmes 
rather than economic development programmes. It 
should be remembered however that the beneficiaries of 
reconstruction programmes were mostly developed 
countries which owned larger shares in the Bank with 
correspondingly greater influence on its policies. The 
Bank should adopt a more sympathetic and understand­
ing attitude towards under-developed countries and 
relax its strictly commercial standards when appraising 
their credit standing. 
21. In addition to the expansion of existing interna­
tional institutions, there was obvious need for the crea­
tion of some other international machinery, as sug­
gested by the Sub-Commission on Economic Develop­
ment, or for the establishment of foreign lending pro­
grammes, as advocated by the group of experts in their 
report, National and International Measures for Full 
Employment. The initiative in that field should natur­
ally come from the more advanced countries. 
22. He believed that the Expanded Programme of 
Technical Assistance would soon start bearing fruit and 
that the United Nations would do its utmost to make 
that programme successful. There was need for a broad 
interpretation of the relevant resolutions of the Assem­
bly, because although economic development problems 
were similar in their widest aspects in all under-devel­
oped countries, the solutions depended on the particular 
circumstances and conditions of each country concerned. 
Hence, there was need for great flexibility and elasticity 
in the implementation of the technical assistance pro­
grammes. In that connexion he welcomed the appoint­
ment by the Technical Assistance Board of liaison 
officers to certain countries. They would be able to 
co-ordinate various requests for technical aid in differ­
ent fields and harmonize efforts at the source, as well as 
advise governments on the type of assistance that could 
be made available under the expanded programme. 
23. It should be realized, however, that technical as~ 
sistance alone could not always achieve its aim unless 
it was accompanied by financial aid enabling full use to 
be made of the advice and knowledge made available 
under the programme. Detailed plans and preparations 
of projects led nowhere if local resources were not sup­
plemented by outside financial aid. Indeed, even admin­
istrative or land reforms might require such expendi­
ture as to make their execution impossible without fi­
nancial assistance. Iran, for instance, had prepared a 
seven-year plan for developing its natural resources and 
improving its economic and social conditions. The prep­
aration of that plan alone had cost the Government con­
s!derable sums in foreign currency, yet its implementa­
tion was being held up by lack of financial assistance 
from outside. 
24. The problem of economic development could only 
be solved by united and resolute efforts on the part of 
all. Considering that after the Second World War, 
Europe, despi.te. all its technical knowledge and its high 
standard of hvmg, had been unable to reconstruct its 
economy by itself, under-developed countries could not 
he expected to achieve decent standards of living with­
out substantial outside assistance. He trusted that prac­
tical measures and appropriate action by the Assembly 
would soon give life to the principles embodied in the 
resolution of the Economic and Social Council. 



42 General Ae~~embly-Fiftb Seesion-Seeond Committee 

25. Mr. ROY (Philippines) indicate·:! that the Ex­
panded Programme of ~echnical Assi3tance for ec<?­
nomic development promtsed to become one of the posi­
tive achievements of the United Nations. A modest 
beginning had been made by the pledl{e of some ~~ 
million for the programme by States wh1ch had partici­
pated in the Technical Assistance Conf,!rence. 

26. He drew attention to the Secretary-General's 
remarks in the introduction to his annual report for 
1949-1950 with regard to the economic and social 
needs facing the peoples of Asia and Africa.2 Recent 
events had thrown into relief the dramatic need for 
technical assistance in one particular section of the 
globe. Analysing the pattern of economic development 
of Asian countries, he suggested that the problem was 
one of achieving a proper balance betw~en agricultural 
production and industrial development. His delegation 
felt that the aim should be an increase in agricultural 
production designed to earn foreign currency and solve 
existing f~od deficits, and a gradual industrialization 
which would make the country less sus.:eptible to fluc­
tuations in the international market. 

27. He drew attention to the possibilities of intra­
regional techn.ical assistance as a suitabl€ complement to 
the United Nations programme and the! "Point Four" 
Programme, and commended the work c•f the Economic 
Commission for Asia and the Far East. 

28. He quoted the substance of a resolution approved 
by the Baguio Conference in 1950, which emphasized 
the need of approaching the problems <•f the countries 
of the Far-East from an over-all viewpoint. Social, 
cultural, educational and health £acton; were part of 
the fabric of economic development of a country and 
must be given their due share of attention in any plans 
for economic development. In that con1exion, he was 
glad to note the nature and scope of activity in the 
United Nations international fellowsh ip programme, 
and hoped that continuing attention would be paid to 
that important field. 

29. Technical assistance was, however, only part of 
the solution. There still remained the pr<•blem vf financ­
ing economic development. Economic development, 
together with technical assistance, should make it pos­
sible to improve the living standards of under-developed 
countries, thus permitting a corresponding increase in 
the living standards of industrialized countries. 

30. In order to attract foreign capital . he thought it 
was essential to offer inducements to fo.::eign investors. 
His government had taken due account of the principal 
prerequisites to the free flow of investment capital, and 
had passed laws designed to encourag€· investment of 
foreign capital. He briefly analysed those! laws. 

31. The importance of direct private investment 
should not, however, be subordinated to the equally 
important function of public intematio112.! financing, for 
which the agency directly responsible was the Inter­
national Bank fo r Reconstruction and Development. 
While recognizing the limitations under which the Bank 
must unavoidably work, he urged that it should adopt 
a more vigorous and constructive approach to the prob­
lems of under-developed countries and ;uggested that. 

2 See Offici41 Records of the General Assembly, Fifth Session, 
Supplemmt No.1. 

in the long run, a more liberal and humane approach 
might pay greater dividends than a cold cash balance. 

32. Since the primary purpose of the Bank was "to 
assist in the reconstruction and development of terri· 
tories of members" he felt that its main attention should 
be devoted to countries which were both war devastated 
and under-developed. 

33. His delegation fully agreed with the Greek repre· 
sentative's observations regarding the scope of the 
Bank's activities ( 119th meeting). Should it not prove 
possible to expand the Bank's terms of reference, how­
ever, his delegation would support the Pakistan view 
(!21st meeting) that a new United Nations agency 
might be established to finance economic programmes 
for the development of under-developed countries. 

34. With reference to the recommendation by the 
group of experts, in Methods of Financing Economic 
Developmetlt i11 Under-developed Cotmtries, that pri­
mary emphasis should be laid on the mobilization of 
domestic savings, he stated that it was futile to expect 
substantial domestic savings in a country where the 
masses had a sub-marginal existence, and he associated 
himself with the Australian representative's remarks 
(!20th meeting) on the necessity of breaking that 
vicious circle. 

35. The relatively small importance of Asia and Africa 
as receivers of foreign capital during the inter-war 
per iod was indicated in the report-lt~ten1atwnal Capi­
tal Movemmts Dt"·ing the Inter-War Period. The fact 
underlined the imperative need for a flow of foreign 
investments on a wider geographical basis. 

36. Pointing out that the Special Committee on Infor­
mation transmitted under Article 73 e of the Charter 
had, that year, decided that the following year's dis­
cussions should be devoted primarily to the economic 
aspect of information received from Non-Self-Govern­
ing Territories, he indicated that it was his delegation's 
intention to present, at the appropriate time, a draft 
resolution on that subject, for the Committee's con­
sideration. 

37. Mr. DICKEY (Canada) said that he had been 
struck by the fact that almost without exception pre­
vious speakers had referred with approval to the atten­
tion which the United Nations had paid to the subject 
of economic development, particularly with regard to 
the under-developed countries. 

38. The recent launching of the Expanded Programme 
for Technical Assistance represented a great achieve­
ment; its full fruits would not be enjoyed for some 
years but it was reasonable to expect early benefits in 
many areas. It was eminently satisfactory that so many 
nations had been represented at the Technical Assist­
ance Conference in June 1950 and that they had all 
made important contributions to the financial backing 
of the programme. 

39. He was sure that everyone regretted that several 
countries in Eastern Europe had so far remained aloof 
from participation in the Expanded Programme. Those 
countries claimed great advances in the economic de­
velopment of their economies. They had not, however, 
found it possible to make any contribution to the special 
account. That was the more regrettable since they had 



123rd Meeting-14 October 1950 43 

voted for General Assembly resolution 304 (IV). They 
had subsequently characterized the whole programme as 
a project of American imperialism. Canada could not 
share that view and felt that the Committee could afford 
to disregard that suggestion, since it was obviously 
intended to divert attention from the fact that the 
Cominform countries had refused to contribute to the 
programme. In any event it was now dear that those 
who were interested in the healthy development of 
world economy could not look to the Soviet Union 
and its satellites for co-operation. On the other hand a 
number of States had contributed to the special account 
although they were barred from membership in the 
United Nations by the Soviet Union's veto. 

40. After lengthy discussions, the Expanded Pro­
gramme of Technical Assistance had been given its 
final form at the Conference in June. The programme 
would still have to be proved and further projects 
should not be initiated too hastily. For its part, the 
Canadian Government was firmly convinced of the 
value of the programme, though its delegation would 
not be slow to make constructive criticisms or to sug­
gest improvements. 

41. Consideration had already been given to arrange­
ments to ensure an adequate flow of funds to finance 
the economic development for which technical assist­
ance would prepare the way. The problem was of a 
continuing nature and no final solution should be ex­
pected immediately. The Economic and Employment 
Commission, which had been reorganized by the Coun­
cil at its eleventh session (resolution 295 (XI)), 
should be left to make appropriate recommendations 
on any action required by the Council or by the General 
Assembly. The Commission was now composed of 
experts from eighteen different countries representing 
all shades of economic opinion, and its recommendations 
were bound to have considerable weight. 

42. He hoped that the representative of the Interna­
tional Bank for Reconstruction and Development would 
clear up the misunderstandings which apparently ex­
isted in connexion with the Bank's practice with regard 
to loans for non-self-liquidating projects. 

43. Several delegations had intimated that they would 
submit draft resolutions to the Committee. His delega­
tion would comment on them at the appropriate time; 
it felt, however, that Council resolution 294 (XI) went 
as far as was feasible at the present time. The next step 
would be for the Economic, Employment and Develop­
ment Commission to consider the needs and resources 
available for financing economic development and re­
port thereon to the Council at its twelfth session. 

44. Mr. RODRIGUEZ FABREGAT (Uruguay) 
said that the economic development of under-developed 
countries was one of the greatest responsibilities of the 
United Nations and the manner in which the problem 
was being treated gave rise to considerable hope. The 
General Assembly had been dealing with the problem 
in its various aspects since 1946 and had adopted a 
number of resolutions on it, and, as a result, the Eco­
nomic and Social Council had devoted much attention 
to the question. The problem had also been dealt with 
at the Technical Assistance Conference and the United 
Nations Scientific Conference for the Conservation and 
Utilization of Resources. 

45. He drew attention to several important questions 
dealt with in the report and recommendations of the 
Economic and Social Council. Those questions and the 
Council's treatment thereof, the availability of financial 
resources for development, the nature of the assistance 
to be given to under-developed areas, United Nations 
action under resolution 200 (III) and resolution 306 
(IV), the nature of each government's contribution, the 
direction and extent of international collaboration, and 
the work of UNSCCUR, constituted ample material on 
which the Committee could work. 

46. As the Indian representative had stated ( 122nd 
meeting), the problem of economic development had 
two technical aspects : the provision of a programme 
of technical assistance and the financial resources re­
quired for its application. There was, however, a third 
aspect of major importance, namely, the human aspect, 
which must be constantly borne in mind in connexion 
with all forms of economic development. Humanitarian 
principles, requiring as they did an improvement in 
standards of living, were at the basis of President 
Truman's "Point Four" programme. Poverty provided 
fertile soil in which social ferment and revolution might 
flourish; the Universal Declaration of Human Rights 
indeed found its strongest support in the Expanded 
Programme for Technical Assistance. It indicated a 
new dimension in the work of the United Nations, that 
of human solidarity. In that connexion, he quoted the 
statements made by the President of Uruguay with 
reference to his country's financial contribution to the 
Expanded Programme of Technical Assistance, and at 
the inauguration of the session of the Economic Com­
mission for Latin America recently held in Monte­
video. 

47. The contribution of Uruguay to the Expanded 
Programme could not be defined in monetary terms 
alone. Its fundamental contribution was the opportunity 
it provided for the study of the economic and social 
evolution of a functional democracy which had been 
able to resist all totalitarian pressures. His country's 
contribution to the plan for technical assistance assumed 
three forms: (a) scholarships for study of Uruguayan 
institutions and public services ; (b) technical instruc­
tion by Uruguayan experts in other countries; and 
(c) provision of seeds, pedigree stock, etc. 

48. He stressed that of those three forms, the most 
important was perhaps the opportunity to study from 
a living model the evolution of a country which some 
fifty years previously had been in the position of the 
under-developed countries which now required technical 
assistance. Uruguay had passed through two great 
cycles: a cycle of social reform, beginning in 1905, and 
a cycle of economic reform which had begun in 1912. 
He brieflly described the important economic and social 
changes which had taken place, quoting figures with 
regard to illiteracy, infantile mortality, working hours, 
wages, etc. In spite of almost non-existent natural 
resources, Uruguay had succeeded in developing its 
economy, its system of transport and communications, 
and its social services. In that connexion, he indicated 
the value, for the country's development, of the exten­
sive system of transport and communications which 
owed its initial existence to foreign capital but which 
had later been nationalized. The transference of such 
services from foreign to national ownership had been 



44 General Assembly- Fifth Session-Second Committee 

achieved without violence or infringement on the rights 
of others. 

49. He also briefly reviewed social legislation in Uru­
guay, with regard to minimum wages, :=ctmily allow­
ances, unemployment insurance and similar matters. 

50. Evoking vividly the lamentable conditions under 
which more than hal£ the world's population was forced 
to live, and stressing that it was the object of the 
Expanded Programme of Technical Assistance to alle­
viate such conditions, he referred to the various United 
Nations activities which supplemented tho.t programme 
and indicated his country's faith in its successful im­
plementation. 

51. Mr. DUVIEUSART (Belgium) stressed the 
heavy responsibilities of the Second Committee: it had 
to formulate the economic policy of the United Nations, 
and economic prosperity was the very foundation of 
peace throughout the world. 

52. The Economic and Social Council ar-d the Second 
Committee had been quite right to concentrate on two 
basic problems: the problem of economic development, 
which was bound up with the economic solidarity of 
nations, and the problem of full employment within 
each State. 

53. There were two basic aspects to the problem of 
economic development: technical assistance and finan­
cial assistance. 

54. He emphasized the fact that the Council resolu­
tion dealing with technical assistance had gained unani­
mous approval. Belgium was wholeheartedly in favour 
of the conclusions reached by the Council and antici­
pated good results now that the functioning of the 
machinery for technical assistance had b~en perfected. 
His country was prepared to receive students and to 
submit lists of experts. That programme would be 
equally beneficial to all countries, not only to those 
requesting help, but also to those giving it. 

55. There had not been, however, the same unanimity 
with regard to conclusions of the resolutiou dealing with 
financial assistance. 

56. Belgium naturally agreed wholeheartedly with the 
principle of economic and financial assistance. It was 
dependent upon international trade, perha.ps more than 
any other country in the world, for its trade balance 
amounted to about 80,000 million francs, while its 
national income was in the region of 240,000 million 
francs. 

57. Nevertheless, it was important to adopt a realistic 
approach to the question of financial assi~tance, and he 
wondered whether the Committee could approve the 
Council's resolution and whether that resollution would 
really suffice. It might perhaps, be better to set up new 
agencies to carry out financial assistance. 

58. Pa~ A and D of the resolution called upon the 
Econom1c, ~mployment and Development Commission, 
the InternatiOnal Monetary Fund and the International 
Ban~ for R~onstruction and Development to carry out 
certam stud1es. Part B contained advice :o nations re­
que.sting a~sistance, particularly to help them stabilize 
the1r bankmg systems. That was a timely suggestion. 

Par t C dealt with methods likely to increase the inter­
national flow of capital. 

59. The aim of the resolution was that national plans 
should be drawn up and studied; once again, therefore, 
part of the work it recommended could be described as 
study. Ne,·ertheless those suggestions were appropriate 
since, by asking States to prepare economic plans, the 
Council tended to further its study of the requirements 
and projects of the countries requesting assistance. 

60. I t was also important to consider the available re­
sources of the countries which might give financial aid 
and, in that connexion, he regretted that the countries 
of Eastern Europe, with, in particular, the Czecho­
slovak delegation acting as spokesman, had confined 
their contribution to verbal criticism and had given no 
concrete financial aid whatsoever. 

61. With that reservation, he was prepared to accept 
the Council's resolution. It would, of course, be essential 
to take each nation's available resources into account, 
to consider their position with regard to the balance 
of payments, their domestic requirements and any com­
mitments they might have. 

62. Belgium, for example, had had to rebuild follow­
ing the destruction wrought by two wars. It was making 
moderately good progress with a ten-year public works 
programme and had also prepared a ten-year plan for 
the economic and social development of the Congo. 
With that reservation, Belgium would faithfully dis­
charge its obligations, particularly towards the Inter­
national Bank for Reconstruction and Development. 

63. The representative of Pakistan had proposed 
( 121 st meeting) the establishment of a new interna­
tional financial agency which would issue bonds and 
might thus grant loans at the rate of 2 per cent. 
Such a rate of interest was naturally desirable, but 
he doubted whether the creation of a new agency would 
necessarily achieve that result. 

64. Although the Belgian Government had done its 
utmost to promote a low rate of interest on loans· 
although Belgium's budget had been .balanced for th~ 
pas~ three years; although it had also achieved stability 
m !ts balance of payments; and although a cautious 
pohcy had been followed with regard to investment 
plans, the fact remained that only recently the consoli­
dated 4 per cent State securities were still being quoted 
in Belgium at 89.20. 

65. A realistic approach should therefore be adopted 
whenever an attempt was made to assess the possible 
results of appeals for funds and international invest­
ments, all the more so since the world situation made 
it imperative for all nations to make great efforts for 
the maintenance of peace. 

66. l\lr. van Zeeland had recently told the General 
Assemb.l~· t!1at peace could only be achieved through 
the. eqU!hbnum of armaments.3 The financial resources 
wh1ch were used for defence purposes were not avail­
able for co~sumption and investments. Nevertheless, 
the. free nattons would do their utmost to carry out 
the1r defence programmes without causing too great a 

P 
3 Sec OffitiiJ:l Records of lllf Ge11eral Assembly, Fifth Session 
ltmory Muttngs, 28lst meetmg. ' 



l23rd Meeting-14 October 1950 4,5 

reduction in consumption and investments. They would 
try to organize international relations in the economic 
field within the framework of the United Nations. 

67. It was to be feared, however, that the international 
tension might prejudice the work of financial assist­
ance. The United Nations should undertake to place all 
ayailabl~ national resources at the disposal of the finan­
Cial asststance programme as soon as defence commit­
ments became less urgent. Financial assistance should 
remain one of the principal objectives of the United 
Nations and its achievement would crown the Organi­
zation's efforts for peace. 

68. Mr. BAKR (Iraq) stated that the Technical 
Assistance programme was rousing great hopes among 
millions of people who had become aware that the 
conditions contributing to their low standards of living 
were not unalterable. Those peoples, who had become 
aware of their rights and potentialities, might, if left 
unassisted, employ their hitherto dormant energies and 
resources to promote an upheaval that would have far­
reaching repercussions throughout the world. It was 
for the advanced countries, working through the United 
Nations, to ensure that those energies and resources 
should not he allowed to go to waste. 

69. After a long historical period of sleep, Asia, the 
cradle of civilization, had awakened and was seeking 
to build a new civilization worthy of the old. He felt 
sure that Asia, Africa and the other under-developed 
regions would contribute to increasing the sum of 
human welfare and prosperity. 

70. The development of the under-developed areas 
was one of the most important problems confronting 
the United Nations. Considerable preliminary work had 
been accomplished by the Organization itself, the spe­
cialized agencies and individual Member States but 
much more remained to be done and greater resources 
should be directed to that end. A country by country 
study should be undertaken to ascertain the special 
characteristics of each economy. Interesting studies had 
been prepared on the financing of economic develop­
ment but they were no substitute for an individual 
survey of each country. The survey should not consist 
in studying each country in isolation but within the 
broader framework of its relations with the other coun­
tries of the area and with the rest of the world. Par­
ticular attention should be paid to development plans 
which were likely to be of immediate benefit to the 
country or regior1 and those plans shonld he initiated 
at once. The flow of foreign capital into the country, 

Printed in U.S.A. 

in relation to its own economic resources should also 
be studied. 

71. There appeared to be general agreement that do­
mestic savings in most under-developed countries were 
very low and unequally distributed. His delegation, 
however, believed that the initial development of certain 
basic projects must not be made contingent on the 
development of domestic financial institutions or in­
creased domestic savings for which a considerable time 
would be required. Financial institutions comparable 
to those in the well-developed countries did not spring 
up overnight; in many instances they were the outcome 
of a certain degree of economic development. The re­
po:t by the Food. a~? Agriculture Organization rightly 
pomted out that 1111t1al development must attain a cer­
tain minimum speed before it became self-generating 
and cumulative. The initial impetus might be provided 
by inter?ational financial institutions if they extended 
substantial loans to projects likely to facilitate further 
development. Together with an expansion of the activi­
ties of existing international institutions such as the 
International Bank, Iraq believed that th~re was room 
for a great many other similar institutions. In Iraq, 
for example, there were vast and almost untouched 
resources which could be developed ; his country had 
already arranged for a loan through the International 
Bank to finance a flood-control scheme on the River 
Tigris. 

72. The time had passed when statesmen were wont 
to consider that the development of the under-devel­
oped countries would deprive the manufacturing coun­
tries of their markets. It was now realized that such 
development would benefit not only the inhabitants of 
the areas concerned but the whole world, since the 
development of under-developed areas would increase 
their demand for goods from other countries. 

7~. Any technical assistance programme must con­
sider both the agricultural and industrial aspects of 
development ; if the agricultural aspects alone were 
stressed development would be painfully slow and might 
never reach the level desired. Agriculture and industry 
must be developed hand in hand. 

74. In conclusion, Mr. Bakr emphasized that scientific 
methods should be employed in developing the under­
developed countries. To permit extraneous considera­
tions to influence development along scientific lines 
would only lead to further disillusionment among the 
peoples of the under-.developed areas, which was obvi­
ously dangerous to mternational peace and security. 

The meeting rose at 1.55 p.m. 

B-39334-0ctober 1950-3,400 




